CareTrust REIT, Inc. Form 424B5 May 17, 2017 Table of Contents

#### CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

(1) Pursuant to Rule 457(p) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, this registration fee is partially offset by \$8,618.56, the remaining amount available from a previously paid registration fee of \$42,441.53 related to unsold securities that were registered pursuant to the registrant s Registration Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-208925) filed with the SEC on January 8, 2016. As a result, \$8,618.56 of the registration fee of \$34,770 due for this offering is offset against the remaining amount available from the registration fee previously paid. The remaining balance of the registration fee, \$26,151.44, has been paid in connection with this offering.

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(5) Registration No. 333-217670

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To prospectus dated May 4, 2017)

\$300,000,000

## CareTrust REIT, Inc.

## **Common Stock**

We may offer to sell up to \$300,000,000 in the aggregate of our common stock from time to time through any of BMO Capital Markets Corp., Barclays Capital Inc., Canaccord Genuity Inc., Capital One Securities, Inc., Fifth Third Securities, Inc., KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, as sales agents under an equity distribution agreement.

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market ( NASDAQ ) under the symbol CTRE . On May 16, 2017, the last sale price of our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ was \$18.05 per share.

We elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (REIT) for U.S. federal income tax purposes beginning with our taxable year ended December 31, 2014. We believe that we have been organized and have operated, and we intend to continue to operate, in a manner to qualify for taxation as a REIT. To assist us in maintaining REIT status, among other purposes, our Articles of Amendment and Restatement contain certain restrictions relating to the ownership and transfer of our stock, including provisions generally restricting a stockholder from owning more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of our common stock, and generally restricting a stockholder from owning more than 9.8% in value of the outstanding shares of all classes or series of our capital stock. See Description of Capital Stock Restrictions on Transfer and Ownership of CareTrust REIT Stock in the accompanying prospectus.

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. See <u>Risk Factors</u> beginning on page S-3 of this prospectus supplement and page 2 of the accompanying prospectus.

Our common stock will be offered at market prices prevailing at the time of sale. We will pay each sales agent a commission at a mutually agreed rate that will not exceed, but may be lower than, 2.0% of the sales price of all of the common stock sold through it as our sales agent under the equity distribution agreement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed on the adequacy of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

**BMO Capital Markets** 

Barclays

**Canaccord Genuity** 

**Capital One Securities** 

**Fifth Third Securities** 

**KeyBanc Capital Markets** 

**Raymond James** 

**RBC Capital Markets** 

Prospectus Supplement dated May 17, 2017

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus and, if applicable, any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering. We have not, and the sales agents have not, authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information. We and the sales agents take no responsibility for, and can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. You should assume that the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with this offering is accurate only as of the date on its respective cover, and that any information we have incorporated by reference is accurate only as of the date of the document incorporated by reference, unless we indicate otherwise. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

We are not, and the sales agents are not, making an offer to sell the securities described in this prospectus supplement in any jurisdiction in which an offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to anyone to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or solicitation. Neither this prospectus supplement nor the accompanying prospectus constitutes an offer, or an invitation on our behalf or on behalf of the sales agents, to subscribe for and purchase any of the securities and may not be used for or in connection with any offer or solicitation by anyone, in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

### **Prospectus Supplement**

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT	S-iii
MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA	S-iii
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	S-iv
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE	S-v
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY	S-1
RISK FACTORS	S-3
USE OF PROCEEDS	S-8
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	S-9
LEGAL MATTERS	S-11
<u>EXPERTS</u>	S-11
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	S-11
Prospectus	
ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	ii
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	iv
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE	V
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	vi
CARETRUST REIT, INC. AND THE CO-REGISTRANTS.	1
RISK FACTORS	2
USE OF PROCEEDS	3

Table of Contents 4

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS	4
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	5
<u>DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS</u>	12
<u>DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS</u>	14

S-i

Table of Contents	
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	15
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES OF DEBT SECURITIES	16
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF MARYLAND LAW AND OF CARETRUST REIT, INC. S CHARTER AND	
<u>BYLAWS</u>	19
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	25
SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS	44
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	45
LEGAL MATTERS	47
EXPERTS	47

S-ii

## ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

This document is in two parts. The first is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which provides a more general description of the terms and conditions of the various securities we may, from time to time, offer under our registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) utilizing a shelf registration process, some of which may not apply to this offering. This prospectus supplement also adds to, updates and changes information contained in the accompanying prospectus. If information in this prospectus supplement is inconsistent with the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on this prospectus supplement.

It is important that you read and consider all of the information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus in making your investment decision. You should also read and consider the information in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and the additional information described under Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference on page S-v of this prospectus supplement and Where You Can Find More Information on page S-11 of this prospectus supplement.

In this prospectus supplement, unless otherwise indicated herein or the context otherwise indicates the terms
CareTrust REIT, we, us, our and the Company refer to CareTrust REIT, Inc., together with its consolidated subsidiaries. With respect to REIT matters, we, our and us refer only to CareTrust REIT, Inc. and not to its consolidated subsidiaries. References to Ensign generally refer to The Ensign Group, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context requires otherwise.

#### MARKET AND INDUSTRY DATA

This prospectus supplement includes information with respect to market share and industry conditions, which are based upon internal estimates and various third-party sources. While management believes that such data is reliable, we have not independently verified any of the data from third-party sources nor have we ascertained the underlying assumptions relied upon therein. Similarly, our internal research is based upon management s understanding of industry conditions, and such information has not been verified by any independent sources. Accordingly, our estimates involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, including those discussed under Risk Factors in this prospectus supplement and under Item 1A. Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as such risk factors may be amended, supplemented or superseded from time to time by other reports we file with the SEC in the future, including any subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

S-iii

### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference may constitute forward-looking statements. Those forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical statements of fact and those regarding our intent, belief or expectations, including, but not limited to, statements regarding: future financing plans, business strategies, growth prospects and operating and financial performance; expectations regarding the making of distributions and the payment of dividends; and compliance with and changes in governmental regulations.

Words such as anticipate(s), expect(s), intend(s), plan(s), believe(s), may, will, would. could. similar expressions, or the negative of these terms, are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are based on management s current expectations and beliefs and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could lead to actual results differing materially from those projected, forecasted or expected. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects or which could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not limited to:

shou

the ability to achieve some or all of the benefits that we expect to achieve from the completed Spin-Off (as defined below);

the ability and willingness of our tenants to meet and/or perform their obligations under the triple-net leases we have entered into with them and the ability and willingness of Ensign to meet and/or perform its other contractual arrangements that it entered into with us in connection with the Spin-Off, and any of its obligations to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and against various claims, litigation and liabilities;

the ability of our tenants to comply with laws, rules and regulations in the operation of the properties we lease to them;

the ability and willingness of our tenants, including Ensign, to renew their leases with us upon their expiration, and the ability to reposition our properties on the same or better terms in the event of nonrenewal or in the event we replace an existing tenant, and obligations, including indemnification obligations, we may incur in connection with the replacement of an existing tenant;

the availability of and the ability to identify suitable acquisition opportunities and to acquire and lease the respective properties on favorable terms;

the ability to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness;

access to debt and equity capital markets;	
fluctuating interest rates;	
the ability to retain our key management personnel;	
the ability to maintain our status as a REIT;	
changes in the U.S. tax law and other state, federal or local laws, whether or not specific to REITs; an	ıd

other risks inherent in the real estate business, including potential liability relating to environmental matters and illiquidity of real estate investments.

We urge you to carefully consider these risks and review the additional disclosures we make concerning risks and other factors that may materially affect the outcome of our forward-looking statements and our future business and operating results, including those made under Risk Factors in this prospectus supplement and under Item 1A. Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as such risk factors may be amended, supplemented or superseded from time to time by other reports we file with the SEC in the future,

S-iv

including subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. We caution you that any forward-looking statements made in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference are not guarantees of future performance, events or results, and you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their respective dates. Except as required by law, we expressly disclaim any obligation to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect any change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any statement is based.

#### INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information about us by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference herein and therein is considered to be a part of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. This prospectus supplement incorporates by reference the documents and reports listed below (other than, in each case, the portions that are deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules):

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 (filed with the SEC on February 7, 2017);

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2017 (filed with the SEC on May 2, 2017);

the portions of our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on March 15, 2017, that are incorporated by reference into Part III of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016;

our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 1, 2017 (with respect to Item 5.02 only), April 27, 2017 and May 11, 2017 (with respect to Exhibit 1.1 of Item 9.01 only) and our Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on February 16, 2017 (amending our current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 2, 2016); and

the description of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, contained in our Registration Statement on Form 10 initially filed with the SEC on November 7, 2013 (File No. 001-36181), including any amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We also incorporate by reference the information contained in all other documents we file with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ) (other than the portions that are deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules, unless otherwise indicated therein) on or after the date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of the offering under this prospectus supplement. The information contained in any such document will be considered part of this prospectus supplement from the date the document is filed with the SEC. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for

purposes of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

S-v

We will provide to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a prospectus (or a notice of registration in lieu thereof) is delivered a copy of any or all of the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus (including any exhibits that are specifically incorporated by reference in those documents) at no cost. Any such request can be made by writing or telephoning us at the following address and telephone number:

CareTrust REIT, Inc.

905 Calle Amanecer, Suite 300

San Clemente, California 92673

(949) 542-3130

S-vi

## PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

The information below is a summary of the more detailed information included in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. You should read carefully the following summary together with the more detailed information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, any free writing prospectus we may provide you in connection with this offering, and the information incorporated by reference herein and therein, including the risk factors described on page S-3 of this prospectus supplement and on page 2 of the accompanying prospectus and the Risk Factors section in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K. This summary is not complete and does not contain all of the information you should consider when making your investment decision. This prospectus supplement relates only to the offering of common stock.

### **Our Company**

CareTrust REIT is a self-administered, publicly-traded REIT engaged in the ownership, acquisition, development and leasing of seniors housing and healthcare-related properties. CareTrust REIT was formed on October 29, 2013, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Ensign with the intent to hold substantially all of Ensign s real estate business. On June 1, 2014, Ensign completed the separation of its real estate business into a separate and independent publicly traded company by distributing all of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company to Ensign stockholders on a pro rata basis (the Spin-Off ). The Spin-Off was effective from and after June 1, 2014, with shares of CareTrust REIT s common stock distributed to Ensign stockholders on June 2, 2014.

We generate revenues primarily by leasing healthcare-related properties to healthcare operators in triple-net lease arrangements, under which the tenant is solely responsible for the costs related to the property (including property taxes, insurance, and maintenance and repair costs). We conduct and manage our business as one operating segment for internal reporting and internal decision making purposes. We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuing opportunities to acquire additional properties that will be leased to a diverse group of local, regional and national healthcare providers, as well as senior housing operators and related businesses. We also anticipate diversifying our portfolio over time, including by acquiring properties in different geographic markets, managed by different lessees and in different asset classes.

We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes beginning with our taxable year ended December 31, 2014. We believe that we have been organized and have operated, and we intend to continue to operate, in a manner to qualify for taxation as a REIT. We operate through an umbrella partnership, commonly referred to as an UPREIT structure, in which substantially all of our properties and assets are held through CTR Partnership, L.P. (the Operating Partnership ). The Operating Partnership is managed by CareTrust REIT s wholly owned subsidiary, CareTrust GP, LLC, which is the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership. To maintain REIT status, we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we annually distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains.

## **Our Corporate Information**

We were formed as a Maryland corporation in October 2013. Our principal executive offices are located at 905 Calle Amanecer, Suite 300, San Clemente, California 92673 and our telephone number is (949) 542-3130. We maintain a website at *www.caretrustreit.com*. The information contained on or that can be accessed through our website is not incorporated by reference into, and is not part of, this prospectus supplement, other than documents that we file with the SEC that are specifically incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

## The Offering

Common stock offered by us

Shares of common stock with an aggregate offering price of up to \$300,000,000.

Use of proceeds by us

We intend to contribute the net proceeds from this offering to the Operating Partnership, which will in turn use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, future acquisitions, debt repayment and working capital. We may temporarily invest the net proceeds before use in interest-bearing short-term investments that are consistent with our ability to maintain our qualification as a REIT. See Use of Proceeds.

NASDAQ symbol

**CTRE** 

Conflicts of interest

As described in Use of Proceeds, we intend to contribute the net proceeds from this offering to the Operating Partnership, which will in turn use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, debt repayment. Affiliates of certain of the sales agents are lenders under the credit and guaranty agreement, dated August 5, 2015, by and among the Company, CareTrust GP, LLC, the Operating Partnership, as the borrower, and certain of its wholly owned subsidiaries, KeyBank National Association, as administrative agent, an issuing bank and swingline lender, and the lenders party thereto, as amended by the first amendment to the credit and guaranty agreement, dated February 1, 2016 (as amended, and as may be further amended, the Credit Facility ). In such capacity, such affiliates may receive a portion of the net proceeds from this offering if net proceeds from this offering are used to repay debt under the Credit Facility. See Plan of Distribution.

Ownership and transfer restrictions

To assist us in qualifying as a REIT, among other purposes, our charter contains certain restrictions relating to the ownership and transfer of our stock, including provisions generally restricting a stockholder from owning more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of our common stock, and generally restricting a stockholder from owning more than 9.8% in value of the outstanding shares of all classes or series of our capital stock. See Description of Capital Stock Restrictions on Transfer and Ownership of CareTrust REIT Stock in the accompanying prospectus.

**Risk Factors** 

Investing in our common stock involves risks. See Risk Factors beginning on page S-3 of this prospectus supplement and page 2 of the accompanying prospectus, as well as the other information included in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus to read about factors you should consider before buying our common stock.

S-2

#### **RISK FACTORS**

Before purchasing shares of our common stock, you should consider carefully the following risk factors, as well as the information under the heading Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, as such risk factors may be amended, supplemented or superseded from time to time by other reports we file with the SEC, including subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and the other information in this prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, each of which could materially adversely affect our operating results and financial condition. See Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation of Certain Information By Reference. Each of such risks could result in a decrease in the value of our common stock and your investment therein. Although we have tried to discuss what we believe are key risk factors, please be aware that other risks may prove to be important in the future. New risks may emerge at any time, and we cannot predict those risks or estimate the extent to which they may affect our financial performance or the value of our common stock.

### Risks Related to This Offering and Our Common Stock

Our charter restricts the ownership and transfer of our outstanding stock, which may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a transaction or change of control of our company.

In order for us to qualify to be taxed as a REIT, not more than 50% in value of our outstanding shares of stock may be owned, beneficially or constructively, by five or fewer individuals at any time during the last half of each taxable year after our first taxable year as a REIT. Additionally, at least 100 persons must beneficially own our stock during at least 335 days of a taxable year (other than our first taxable year as a REIT). Our charter, with certain exceptions, authorizes our board of directors to take such actions as are necessary and desirable to preserve our qualification as a REIT. Our charter also provides that, unless exempted by the board of directors, no person may own more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of the outstanding shares of our common stock, or more than 9.8% in value of the outstanding shares of all classes or series of our stock. The constructive ownership rules are complex and may cause shares of stock owned directly or constructively by a group of related individuals or entities to be constructively owned by one individual or entity. These ownership limits could delay or prevent a transaction or a change in control of us that might involve a premium price for shares of our stock or otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders. The acquisition of less than 9.8% of our outstanding stock by an individual or entity could cause that individual or entity to own constructively in excess of 9.8% in value of our outstanding stock, and thus violate our charter s ownership limit. Our charter also prohibits any person from owning shares of our stock that would result in our being closely held under Section 856(h) of the Code or otherwise cause us to fail to qualify to be taxed as a REIT. In addition, our charter provides that (i) no person shall beneficially or constructively own shares of stock to the extent such beneficial or constructive ownership of stock would result in us failing to qualify as a domestically controlled qualified investment entity within the meaning of Section 897(h) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), and (ii) no person shall beneficially or constructively own shares of stock to the extent such beneficial or constructive ownership would cause us to own, beneficially or constructively, more than a 9.9% interest (as set forth in Section 856(d)(2)(B) of the Code) in a tenant of our real property. Any attempt to own or transfer shares of our stock in violation of these restrictions may result in the transfer being automatically void.

Maryland law and provisions in our charter and bylaws may delay or prevent takeover attempts by third parties and therefore inhibit our stockholders from realizing a premium on their stock.

Our charter and bylaws and Maryland law contain provisions that are intended to deter coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids and to encourage prospective acquirors to negotiate with our board of directors rather than to attempt a hostile takeover. Our charter and bylaws, among other things, (1) contain transfer and ownership restrictions

on the percentage by number and value of outstanding shares of our stock that may be owned or acquired by any stockholder; (2) provide that stockholders are not allowed to act by non-unanimous

S-3

written consent; (3) permit the board of directors, without further action of the stockholders, to amend the charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized shares or the number of shares of any class or series that we have the authority to issue; (4) permit the board of directors to classify or reclassify any unissued shares of common or preferred stock and set the preferences, rights and other terms of the classified or reclassified shares; (5) permit only the board of directors to amend the bylaws; (6) establish certain advance notice procedures for stockholder proposals, and provide procedures for the nomination of candidates for our board of directors; (7) provide that special meetings of stockholders may only be called by the Company or upon written request of stockholders entitled to be at the meeting; (8) provide that a director may only be removed by stockholders for cause and upon the vote of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of common stock; (9) provide for supermajority approval requirements for amending or repealing certain provisions in our charter; and (10) provide for a classified board of directors of three separate classes with staggered terms. In addition, specific anti-takeover provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law could make it more difficult for a third party to attempt a hostile takeover. These provisions include:

business combination provisions that, subject to limitations, prohibit certain business combinations between us and an interested stockholder (defined generally as any person who beneficially owns 10% or more of the voting power of our shares or an affiliate thereof) for five years after the most recent date on which the stockholder becomes an interested stockholder, and thereafter impose special appraisal rights and special stockholder voting requirements on these combinations; and

control share provisions that provide that control shares of our company (defined as shares which, when aggregated with other shares controlled by the stockholder, entitle the stockholder to exercise one of three increasing ranges of voting power in electing directors) acquired in a control share acquisition (defined as the direct or indirect acquisition of ownership or control of control shares ) have no voting rights except to the extent approved by our stockholders by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of all the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding all interested shares.

We believe these provisions protect our stockholders from coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics by requiring potential acquirors to negotiate with our board of directors and by providing our board of directors with more time to assess any acquisition proposal. These provisions are not intended to make us immune from takeovers. However, these provisions will apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some stockholders and could delay or prevent an acquisition that our board of directors determines is not in our best interests. These provisions may also prevent or discourage attempts to remove and replace incumbent directors.

## The market price and trading volume of our common stock may fluctuate.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate, depending upon many factors, some of which may be beyond our control, including, but not limited to:

a shift in our investor base;

our quarterly or annual earnings, or those of other comparable companies;

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results;

our ability to obtain financing as needed;

changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;

changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles;

announcements by us or our competitors of significant investments, acquisitions or dispositions;

the failure of securities analysts to cover our common stock;

changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet those estimates;

the operating performance and stock price of other comparable companies;

S-4

overall market fluctuations; and

general economic conditions and other external factors.

Stock markets in general have experienced volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of a particular company. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the trading price of our common stock, which may impair our ability to raise additional capital.

Sales or issuances of shares of our common stock could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales might occur, could adversely affect the market price of our common stock. The issuance of our common stock in connection with property, portfolio or business acquisitions or the exercise of outstanding stock options or otherwise could also have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock.

We will have broad discretion as to the use of the net proceeds we receive from this offering and may not use them effectively.

We will retain broad discretion to use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, future acquisitions, debt repayment and working capital. We may temporarily invest the net proceeds before use in interest-bearing short-term investments that are consistent with our ability to maintain our qualification as a REIT. Accordingly, you will have to rely upon the judgment of our management with respect to the use of those net proceeds. Our management may spend a portion or all of the net proceeds we receive from this offering in ways that our stockholders may not desire or that may not yield a favorable return. The failure by our management to apply these funds effectively could harm our business.

Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could materially and adversely affect our business and the market price of our common stock.

Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended (the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ), we must maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, which require significant resources and management oversight. Internal control over financial reporting is complex and may be revised over time to adapt to changes in our business, or changes in applicable accounting rules. We cannot assure you that our internal control over financial reporting will be effective in the future or that a material weakness will not be discovered with respect to a prior period for which we had previously believed that internal controls were effective. Matters impacting our internal controls may cause us to be unable to report our financial data on a timely basis, or may cause us to restate previously issued financial data, and thereby subject us to adverse regulatory consequences, including sanctions or investigations by the SEC, or violations of applicable stock exchange listing rules. There could also be a negative reaction in the financial markets due to a loss of investor confidence in us and the reliability of our financial statements. Confidence in the reliability of our financial statements is also likely to suffer if we or our independent registered public accounting firm reports a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. This could materially adversely affect us by, for example, leading to a decline in the market price for our common stock and impairing our ability to raise capital.

Additionally, as we are no longer an emerging growth company, as defined by the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, our independent registered public accounting firm is required, pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting on an annual basis. If we cannot maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures or internal control over financial

reporting, or our independent registered public accounting firm cannot provide an unqualified attestation report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, investor confidence and, in turn, the market price of our common stock could decline.

## We cannot assure you of our ability to pay dividends in the future.

We expect to make quarterly dividend payments in cash, with the annual dividend amount no less than 90% of our REIT taxable income on an annual basis, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains. Our ability to pay dividends may be adversely affected by a number of factors, including the risk factors described in this prospectus. Dividends are authorized by our board of directors and declared by us based upon a number of factors, including actual results of operations, restrictions under Maryland law or applicable debt covenants, our financial condition, our taxable income, the annual distribution requirements under the REIT provisions of the Code, our operating expenses and other factors our directors deem relevant. We cannot assure you that we will achieve investment results that will allow us to make a specified level of cash dividends or year-to-year increases in cash dividends in the future.

Furthermore, while we are required to pay dividends in order to maintain our REIT status, we may elect not to maintain our REIT status, in which case we would no longer be required to pay such dividends. Moreover, even if we do elect to maintain our REIT status, after completing various procedural steps, we may elect to comply with the applicable distribution requirements by distributing, under certain circumstances, a portion of the required amount in the form of shares of our common stock in lieu of cash. If we elect not to maintain our REIT status or to satisfy any required distributions in shares of common stock in lieu of cash, such action could negatively affect our business and financial condition as well as the market price of our common stock. No assurance can be given that we will pay any dividends on shares of our common stock in the future.

## Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted in the future.

Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted in the future because of equity awards that we expect will be granted to our directors, officers and employees, as well as other equity instruments such as debt and equity financing. Our board of directors has adopted the CareTrust REIT, Inc. and CTR Partnership, L.P. Incentive Award Plan (the Incentive Award Plan ), which provides for the grant of stock-based compensation, including stock options, restricted stock, performance awards, restricted stock units and other incentive awards to our officers, employees and directors in connection with their employment with or services provided to us. Subject to adjustment in the event of a merger, recapitalization, stock split, reorganization or similar transaction, the maximum aggregate number of shares available for issuance under the Incentive Award Plan is 5,000,000. As of March 31, 2017, an aggregate of 4,368,427 shares of common stock were available for future issuance under the awards granted pursuant to the Incentive Award Plan.

## We may incur or issue debt or issue equity, which may negatively affect the market price of our common stock.

We may in the future incur or issue debt or issue equity or equity-related securities. Upon our liquidation, lenders and holders of our debt and holders of our preferred stock (if any) would receive a distribution of our available assets before common stockholders. Any future incurrence or issuance of debt would increase our interest cost and could adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows. We are not required to offer any additional equity securities to existing common stockholders on a preemptive basis. Therefore, additional issuances of common stock, directly or through convertible or exchangeable securities (including limited partnership interests in our operating partnership), warrants or options, will dilute the holdings of our existing common stockholders and such issuances, or the perception of such issuances, may reduce the market price of our common stock. Any preferred stock issued by us would likely have a preference on distribution payments, periodically or upon liquidation, which could eliminate or

otherwise limit our ability to make distributions to common stockholders. Because our decision to incur or issue debt or issue equity or equity-related securities in the future will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate

S-6

the amount, timing, nature or success of our future capital raising efforts. Thus, common stockholders bear the risk that our future incurrence or issuance of debt or issuance of equity or equity-related securities will adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We may issue preferred stock with terms that could dilute the voting power or reduce the value of our common stock.

While we have no specific plan to issue preferred stock, our charter authorizes us to issue, without the approval of our stockholders, one or more classes or series of preferred stock having such designations, powers, privileges, preferences, including preferences over our common stock respecting dividends and distributions, terms of redemption and relative participation, optional or other rights, if any, of the shares of each such series of preferred stock and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, as our board of directors may determine. The terms of one or more classes or series of preferred stock could dilute the voting power or reduce the value of our common stock. For example, the repurchase or redemption rights or liquidation preferences we could assign to holders of preferred stock could affect the residual value of the common stock.

## ERISA may restrict investments by plans in our common stock.

A plan fiduciary considering an investment in our common stock should consider, among other things, whether such an investment is consistent with the fiduciary obligations under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERISA), including whether such investment might constitute or give rise to a prohibited transaction under ERISA, the Code or any substantially similar federal, state or local law and, if so, whether an exemption from such prohibited transaction rules is available.

S-7

## **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We intend to contribute the net proceeds from this offering to the Operating Partnership, which will in turn use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, future acquisitions, debt repayment and working capital. We may temporarily invest the net proceeds before use in interest-bearing short-term investments that are consistent with our ability to maintain our qualification as a REIT. Affiliates of certain of the sales agents are lenders under the Credit Facility and, in such capacity, may receive a portion of the net proceeds from this offering if net proceeds from this offering are used to repay debt under the Credit Facility. See Plan of Distribution.

## PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We have entered into an equity distribution agreement with BMO Capital Markets Corp., Barclays Capital Inc., Canaccord Genuity Inc., Capital One Securities, Inc., Fifth Third Securities, Inc., KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, as sales agents, under which we may offer and sell shares of common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to \$300,000,000 from time to time. The equity distribution agreement entered into with the sales agents will be filed as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K, which will be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. The sales, if any, of common stock made under the equity distribution agreement will be made by means of ordinary brokers—transactions on the NASDAQ at market prices, or as otherwise agreed upon by one or more of the sales agents and us. The sales agents will not engage in any transactions that stabilize the price of our common stock.

Under the terms of the equity distribution agreement, we also may sell shares of common stock to one or more of our sales agents as principal for its own account at a price agreed upon at the time of sale. If we sell common stock to one or more of our sales agents as principal, we will enter into a separate terms agreement with the sales agent and we will describe this terms agreement in a separate prospectus supplement or pricing supplement.

We will designate the maximum amount of common stock to be sold through the sales agents on a daily basis or otherwise as we and the sales agents agree and the minimum price per common unit at which such common stock may be sold. Subject to the terms and conditions of the equity distribution agreement, the sales agents will use their reasonable efforts to sell on our behalf all of the designated common stock. We may instruct the sales agents not to sell any common stock if the sales cannot be effected at or above the price designated by us in any such instruction. We or the sales agents may suspend the offering of common stock at any time and from time to time by notifying the other party.

The sales agents will provide to us written confirmation following the close of trading on the NASDAQ each day in which common stock are sold under the equity distribution agreement. Each confirmation will include the number of shares of common stock sold on that day, the gross sales proceeds and the net proceeds to us (after transaction fees, if any, but before other expenses). We will report at least quarterly the number of shares of common stock sold through the sales agents under the equity distribution agreement, the net proceeds to us (before expenses) and the commissions of the sales agents in connection with the sales of the common stock.

We will pay each sales agent a commission of up to 2.0% of the gross sales price per share of common stock sold through it as our agent under the equity distribution agreement. We have agreed to reimburse the sales agents for certain of their expenses.

Settlement for sales of common stock will occur on the third business day following the date on which any sales were made in return for payment of the net proceeds to us. There is no arrangement for funds to be received in an escrow, trust or similar arrangement.

If we or any of the sales agents have reason to believe that shares of our common stock are no longer actively-traded securities as defined under Rule 101(c)(l) of Regulation M under the Exchange Act, that party will promptly notify the others and sales of common stock pursuant to the equity distribution agreement or any terms agreement will be suspended until, in the collective judgment of the parties, Rule 101(c)(1) or another exemptive provision has been satisfied.

The offering of common stock pursuant to the equity distribution agreement will terminate upon the earlier of (1) the sale of all common stock subject to the equity distribution agreement or (2) the termination of the equity distribution

agreement by us or by the sales agents.

S-9

In connection with the sale of the common stock on our behalf, each of the sales agents will be deemed to be an underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act ), and the compensation paid to the sales agents may be deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts. We have agreed to provide indemnification and contribution to the sales agents against certain liabilities, including civil liabilities under the Securities Act.

The sales agents and/or affiliates of each of the sales agents have, from time to time, performed, and may in the future perform, various financial advisory and commercial and investment banking services for us and our affiliates, for which they have received and in the future will receive customary compensation and expense reimbursement.

## **Conflicts of Interest**

Affiliates of certain of the sales agents are lenders under the Credit Facility. BMO Harris Bank, N.A., an affiliate of BMO Capital Markets Corp., Barclays Bank PLC, an affiliate of Barclays Capital Inc., Fifth Third Bank, an affiliate of Fifth Third Securities, Inc., Healthcare Financial Solutions, LLC, an affiliate of Capital One Securities, Inc., Raymond James Bank, N.A., an affiliate of Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and Royal Bank of Canada, an affiliate of RBC Capital Markets, LLC, are lenders under the Credit Facility. KeyBank National Association, an affiliate of KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. is the administrative agent, issuing bank, swingline lender and a lender under the Credit Facility.

We intend to contribute the net proceeds from this offering to the Operating Partnership, which will in turn use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, which may include, among other things, debt repayment. As such, affiliates of certain of the sales agents may receive a portion of the net proceeds from this offering if net proceeds from this offering are used to repay debt under the Credit Facility. Such repayment to affiliates of certain of the sales agents may constitute more than 5% of the net proceeds of this offering.

S-10

#### **LEGAL MATTERS**

Certain legal matters regarding the validity of the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by O Melveny & Myers LLP and by DLA Piper LLP (US), Baltimore, Maryland, with respect to matters of Maryland law. In addition, certain U.S. federal income tax matters will be passed upon for us by Kirkland & Ellis LLP, Los Angeles, California. The sales agents have been represented by Jones Day.

#### **EXPERTS**

The consolidated and combined financial statements of CareTrust REIT, Inc. appearing in CareTrust REIT, Inc. s Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the year ended December 31, 2016 (including the schedule appearing therein), and the effectiveness of CareTrust REIT, Inc. s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon, included therein, and incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated and combined financial statements are incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such report given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

The statement of revenues and certain expenses of the Texas Skilled Nursing Portfolio acquired by CareTrust REIT, Inc. appearing in CareTrust REIT, Inc. s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on February 16, 2017 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon, and incorporated herein by reference. Such statement of revenue and certain expenses is incorporated herein by reference in reliance on the report of such firm given upon its authority as experts in accounting.

## WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

CareTrust REIT files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. The public may read and copy the information we file with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1 800 SEC 0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

Our website address is located at http://www.caretrustreit.com. Through links on the Investors portion of our website, we make available free of charge our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, any amendments to those reports and other information filed with, or furnished to, the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Such material is made available through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file the information with, or furnish it to, the SEC. The information contained on or that can be accessed through our website does not constitute part of this prospectus supplement, other than documents that we file with the SEC that are specifically incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

S-11

## **PROSPECTUS**

## CareTrust REIT, Inc.

COMMON STOCK, PREFERRED STOCK, WARRANTS, RIGHTS AND UNITS

CTR Partnership, L.P. and CareTrust Capital Corp.

#### **DEBT SECURITIES**

Guarantees of Debt Securities of CTR Partnership, L.P. and CareTrust Capital Corp. by CareTrust REIT, Inc. and the Subsidiary Guarantors

CareTrust REIT, Inc., or any selling securityholders to be identified in the future, may offer from time to time, in one or more series:

shares of common stock;

shares of preferred stock;

warrants to purchase common stock and/or preferred stock;

rights to purchase common stock and/or preferred stock; and

units consisting of two or more of these classes or series of securities.

CareTrust REIT, Inc., or any selling securityholders to be identified in the future, may offer and sell, from time to time, in one or more offerings, the above securities in amounts, at prices and on terms determined at the time of offering.

CTR Partnership, L.P. and CareTrust Capital Corp. may offer and sell, from time to time, in one or more offerings, debt securities in amounts, at prices and on terms determined at the time of offering. These debt securities may be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by CareTrust REIT, Inc. and by certain of its subsidiaries, which may include the Subsidiary Guarantors (as defined herein), as described in this prospectus or in a prospectus supplement. These debt

securities and any such guarantees may be senior obligations.

The securities described in this prospectus may be offered and sold separately or together in units with other securities described in this prospectus. This prospectus may not be used to offer and sell any securities unless accompanied by a prospectus supplement. The specific terms of any securities to be offered and the manner in which the securities will be offered will be described in a supplement to this prospectus. If agents, underwriters or dealers are used to sell these securities, a prospectus supplement will name them and describe their compensation. The prospectus supplement may also add, update or change information contained in this prospectus.

Investing in our securities involves risks. You should read carefully the section entitled <u>Risk Factors</u> on page 2 herein and the Risk Factors section contained in the applicable prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus before investing in our securities.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

The date of this prospectus is May 4, 2017.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	ii
WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION	iv
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE	v
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS	vi
CARETRUST REIT, INC. AND THE CO-REGISTRANTS	1
RISK FACTORS	2
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	3
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS	4
DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK	5
DESCRIPTION OF WARRANTS	12
DESCRIPTION OF RIGHTS	14
DESCRIPTION OF UNITS	15
DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES OF DEBT SECURITIES	16
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF MARYLAND LAW AND OF CARETRUST REIT, INC. S CHARTER AND	
<u>BYLAWS</u>	19
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	25
SELLING SECURITYHOLDERS	44
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION	45
LEGAL MATTERS	47
EXPERTS	47

i

## ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of an automatic shelf registration statement on Form S-3 that we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) as a well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), using a shelf registration process. Under this shelf process, CareTrust REIT, the Operating Partnership, CareTrust Capital, the Subsidiary Guarantors or any selling securityholders to be named in a prospectus supplement may, from time to time, sell securities as described in this prospectus in one or more offerings.

This prospectus provides you with a general description of the securities that may be offered pursuant to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part. Each time CareTrust REIT, the Operating Partnership, CareTrust Capital, the Subsidiary Guarantors or any selling securityholder sells securities pursuant to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, a prospectus supplement will be provided that contains specific information about the terms of that offering. This prospectus may not be used to consummate sales of securities unless it is accompanied by a prospectus supplement. The prospectus supplement may add information to this prospectus or update or change information in this prospectus. If there is any inconsistency between the information in this prospectus and any prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information in the prospectus supplement. You should carefully read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under the headings. Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference.

You should rely only on the information contained in, or incorporated by reference into, this prospectus, in any accompanying prospectus supplement or in any free writing prospectus that we have authorized for use in connection with any offering of securities. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information. None of CareTrust REIT, the Operating Partnership, CareTrust Capital, the Subsidiary Guarantors or any selling securityholder is offering to sell or soliciting any offer to buy any securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

You should assume that the information in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement or any free writing prospectus is accurate only as of the date on its respective cover, and that any information incorporated by reference is accurate only as of the date of the document incorporated by reference, unless we indicate otherwise. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

The phrase this prospectus refers to this prospectus and any applicable prospectus supplement, unless the context otherwise requires. Unless otherwise stated, or the context otherwise requires:

references in this prospectus to CareTrust REIT, the Company, we, us and our refer to CareTrust REIT and its consolidated subsidiaries;

references in this prospectus to Operating Partnership refer to CTR Partnership, L.P.;

references in this prospectus to CareTrust Capital refer to CareTrust Capital Corp.; and

references in this prospectus to the Subsidiary Guarantors refer to, collectively, 18th Place Health Holdings LLC, 49th Street Health Holdings LLC, 4th Street Holdings LLC, 51st Avenue Health Holdings LLC, Anson Health Holdings LLC, Arapahoe Health Holdings LLC, Arrow Tree Health Holdings LLC, Avenue N Holdings LLC, Big Sioux River Health Holdings LLC, Boardwalk Health Holdings LLC, Bogardus Health Holdings LLC, Burley Healthcare Holdings LLC, CareTrust GP, LLC, Casa Linda Retirement LLC, Cedar Avenue Holdings LLC, CM Health Holdings LLC, Cherry Health Holdings LLC, Cottonwood Health Holdings LLC, CTR Arvada Preferred, LLC, CTR Cascadia Preferred, LLC, Dallas Independence LLC, Dixie Health Holdings LLC, Emmett Healthcare Holdings LLC, Ensign Bellflower LLC, Ensign Highland LLC, Ensign Southland LLC, Everglades Health Holdings LLC, Expo Park Health Holdings LLC, Fig Street Health Holdings LLC, Flamingo Health Holdings LLC, Fort Street Health Holdings LLC, Gazebo Park Health Holdings LLC, Gillette Park Health

ii

Holdings LLC, Golfview Holdings LLC, Granada Investments LLC, Guadalupe Health Holdings LLC, Hillendahl Health Holdings LLC, Hillview Health Holdings LLC, Irving Health Holdings LLC, Ives Health Holdings LLC, Jefferson Ralston Holdings LLC, Jordan Health Properties LLC, Josey Ranch Healthcare Holdings LLC, Kings Court Health Holdings LLC, Lafayette Health Holdings LLC, Lemon River Holdings LLC, Lockwood Health Holdings LLC, Long Beach Health Associates LLC, Lowell Health Holdings LLC, Lowell Lake Health Holdings LLC, Lufkin Health Holdings LLC, Meadowbrook Health Associates LLC, Memorial Health Holdings LLC, Mesquite Health Holdings LLC, Mission CCRC LLC, Moenium Holdings LLC, Mountainview Communitycare LLC, Northshore Healthcare Holdings LLC, Oleson Park Health Holdings LLC, Orem Health Holdings LLC, Paredes Health Holdings LLC, Plaza Health Holdings LLC, Polk Health Holdings LLC, Prairie Health Holdings LLC, Price Health Holdings LLC, Queen City Health Holdings LLC, Queensway Health Holdings LLC, RB Heights Health Holdings LLC, Regal Road Health Holdings LLC, Renee Avenue Health Holdings LLC, Rillito Holdings LLC, Rio Grande Health Holdings LLC, Salmon River Health Holdings LLC, Salt Lake Independence LLC, San Corrine Health Holdings LLC, Saratoga Health Holdings LLC, Silver Lake Health Holdings LLC, Silverada Health Holdings LLC, Sky Holdings AZ LLC, Snohomish Health Holdings LLC, South Dora Health Holdings LLC, Stillhouse Health Holdings LLC, Temple Health Holdings LLC, Tenth East Holdings LLC, Terrace Holdings AZ LLC, Trinity Mill Holdings LLC, Trousdale Health Holdings LLC, Tulalip Bay Health Holdings LLC, Valley Health Holdings LLC, Verde Villa Holdings LLC, Wayne Health Holdings LLC, Willits Health Holdings LLC, Willows Health Holdings LLC and Wisteria Health Holdings LLC.

iii

# WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

CareTrust REIT files annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. The Operating Partnership, CareTrust Capital and the Subsidiary Guarantors do not currently file reports, proxy statements or other information under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ) with the SEC. The public may read and copy the information we file with the SEC at the SEC s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

Our website address is located at http://www.caretrustreit.com. Through links on the Investors portion of our website, we make available free of charge CareTrust REIT s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, any amendments to those reports and other information filed with, or furnished to, the SEC pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Such material is made available through our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file the information with, or furnish it to, the SEC. The information contained on or that can be accessed through our website does not constitute part of this prospectus, except for reports filed with the SEC that are specifically incorporated herein by reference.

CareTrust REIT, the Operating Partnership, CareTrust Capital and the Subsidiary Guarantors have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-3 relating to the securities covered by this prospectus. This prospectus does not contain all the information set forth in the registration statement or the exhibits filed with it, parts of which are omitted in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. You will find additional information about us in the registration statement. Any statement made in this prospectus concerning a contract or other document of ours is not necessarily complete and you should read the documents that are filed as exhibits to the registration statement or otherwise filed with the SEC for a more complete understanding of the document or matter. Each such statement is qualified in all respects by reference to the document to which it refers. The full registration statement, including exhibits thereto, may be obtained from the SEC or us as indicated above.

iv

## INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus, which means that we can disclose important information about us by referring you to another document filed separately with the SEC. This prospectus incorporates by reference the documents and reports listed below (other than the portions that are deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules):

our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 (filed with the SEC on February 7, 2017);

our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2017 (filed with the SEC on May 2, 2017);

the portions of our Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the SEC on March 15, 2017 that are incorporated by reference into Part III of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016;

our Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 1, 2017 (with respect to Item 5.02 only) and April 27, 2017 and our Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the SEC on February 16, 2017 (amending our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 2, 2016); and

the description of our common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, contained in our Registration Statement on Form 10 initially filed with the SEC on November 7, 2013 (File No. 001-36181), including any amendments or reports filed for the purpose of updating such description.

We also incorporate by reference the information contained in all other documents we file with the SEC pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (other than the portions that are deemed to have been furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules, unless otherwise indicated therein) after the date of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part and on or after the date of this prospectus but prior to the completion of the offerings of all securities under this prospectus and any prospectus supplement. The information contained in any such document will be considered part of this prospectus from the date the document is filed with the SEC. Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for purposes of this prospectus and any accompanying prospectus to the extent that a statement contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. Any such statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus or any accompanying prospectus supplement.

We will provide to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom a prospectus (or a notice of registration in lieu thereof) is delivered a copy of any or all of the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus (including any exhibits that are specifically incorporated by reference in those documents) at no cost. Any such request can be made by writing or telephoning us at the following address and telephone number:

# Edgar Filing: CareTrust REIT, Inc. - Form 424B5 CareTrust REIT, Inc.

905 Calle Amanecer, Suite 300

San Clemente, California 92673

(949) 542-3130

v

# CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference may constitute forward-looking statements. Those forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical statements of fact and those regarding our intent, belief or expectations, including, but not limited to, statements regarding: future financing plans, business strategies, growth prospects and operating and financial performance; expectations regarding the making of distributions and the payment of dividends; and compliance with and changes in governmental regulations.

Words such as anticipate(s), expect(s), intend(s), plan(s), believe(s), may, will, would. could. similar expressions, or the negative of these terms, are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. These statements are based on management s current expectations and beliefs and are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties that could lead to actual results differing materially from those projected, forecasted or expected. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be attained. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects or which could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are not limited to:

shou

the ability to achieve some or all of the benefits that we expect to achieve from the completed Spin-Off (as defined below);

the ability and willingness of our tenants to meet and/or perform their obligations under the triple-net leases we have entered into with them and the ability and willingness of The Ensign Group, Inc. ( Ensign ) to meet and/or perform its other contractual arrangements that it entered into with us in connection with the Spin-Off, and any of its obligations to indemnify, defend and hold us harmless from and against various claims, litigation and liabilities;

the ability of our tenants to comply with laws, rules and regulations in the operation of the properties we lease to them;

the ability and willingness of our tenants, including Ensign, to renew their leases with us upon their expiration, and the ability to reposition our properties on the same or better terms in the event of nonrenewal or in the event we replace an existing tenant, and obligations, including indemnification obligations, we may incur in connection with the replacement of an existing tenant;

the availability of and the ability to identify suitable acquisition opportunities and the ability to acquire and lease the respective properties on favorable terms;

the ability to generate sufficient cash flows to service our outstanding indebtedness;

# Edgar Filing: CareTrust REIT, Inc. - Form 424B5

access to debt and equity capital markets;

fluctuating interest rates;

the ability to retain our key management personnel;

the ability to maintain our status as a real estate investment trust ( REIT );

changes in the U.S. tax law and other state, federal or local laws, whether or not specific to REITs; and

other risks inherent in the real estate business, including potential liability relating to environmental matters and illiquidity of real estate investments.

We urge you to carefully consider these risks and review the additional disclosures we make concerning risks and other factors that may materially affect the outcome of our forward-looking statements and our future business and operating results, including those made in Item 1A. Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC, as such risk factors may be amended, supplemented or superseded from time to time by other reports we file with the SEC in the future, including subsequent Annual Reports on

vi

Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and in any prospectus supplement. We caution you that any forward-looking statements made in this prospectus, any prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference are not guarantees of future performance, events or results, and you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of their respective dates. Except as required by law, we expressly disclaim any obligation to release publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect any change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any statement is based.

vii

# CARETRUST REIT, INC. AND THE CO-REGISTRANTS

CareTrust REIT is a self-administered, publicly-traded REIT engaged in the ownership, acquisition, development and leasing of seniors housing and healthcare-related properties. CareTrust REIT was formed on October 29, 2013, as a wholly owned subsidiary of Ensign with the intent to hold substantially all of Ensign s real estate business. On June 1, 2014, Ensign completed the separation of its real estate business into a separate and independent publicly traded company by distributing all of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company to Ensign stockholders on a pro rata basis (the Spin-Off).

We generate revenues primarily by leasing healthcare-related properties to healthcare operators in triple-net lease arrangements, under which the tenant is solely responsible for the costs related to the property (including property taxes, insurance, and maintenance and repair costs). We conduct and manage our business as one operating segment for internal reporting and internal decision making purposes. We expect to grow our portfolio by pursuing opportunities to acquire additional properties that will be leased to a diverse group of local, regional and national healthcare providers, as well as senior housing operators and related businesses. We also anticipate diversifying our portfolio over time, including by acquiring properties in different geographic markets, managed by different lessees and in different asset classes.

The Spin-Off was effective from and after June 1, 2014, with shares of CareTrust REIT s common stock distributed to Ensign stockholders on June 2, 2014. We elected to be taxed as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes beginning with our taxable year ended December 31, 2014. We believe that we have been organized and have operated, and we intend to continue to operate, in a manner to qualify for taxation as a REIT. We operate through an umbrella partnership, commonly referred to as an UPREIT structure, in which substantially all of our properties and assets are held through the Operating Partnership. The Operating Partnership is managed by CareTrust REIT s wholly owned subsidiary, CareTrust GP, LLC, which is the sole general partner of the Operating Partnership. To maintain REIT status, we must meet a number of organizational and operational requirements, including a requirement that we annually distribute to our stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the dividends paid deduction and excluding any net capital gains.

The Subsidiary Guarantors, other than CareTrust GP, LLC, are each managed by the Operating Partnership, which is the sole member of each of the Subsidiary Guarantors. The Operating Partnership is also the sole shareholder of CareTrust Capital.

Our principal executive offices are located at 905 Calle Amanecer, Suite 300, San Clemente, California 92673 and our telephone number is (949) 542-3130.

1

# **RISK FACTORS**

Investing in our securities involves significant risks. You should consider the specific risks described in Item 1A. Risk Factors in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC, as such risk factors may be amended, supplemented or superseded from time to time by other reports we file with the SEC in the future pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, including subsequent Annual Reports on Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, and the risk factors described under the caption Risk Factors in any applicable prospectus supplement, before making an investment decision. Each of the risks described in these documents could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects, and could result in a partial or complete loss of your investment. See Where You Can Find More Information and Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference.

2

# **USE OF PROCEEDS**

We intend to use the net proceeds from the sale of any securities covered by this prospectus as set forth in the applicable prospectus supplement. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of any securities by selling securityholders.

3

## RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

The following table sets forth the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends for CareTrust REIT for each of the periods indicated. You should read this table in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes incorporated by reference in this prospectus.

	Three Months Ended March 31,		Year Ended December 31,			
	2017	2016	2015	2014(2)	2013(2)	2012(2)
Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and						
preferred stock dividends <sup>(1)</sup>	2.75x	2.26x	1.40x			1.02x

- (1) For the purpose of computing our ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends, earnings is the amount resulting from adding: (a) pre-tax income from continuing operations; and (b) fixed charges. Fixed charges is the amount equal to the sum of: (i) interest expensed and capitalized; (ii) amortization of premiums, discounts and capitalized expenses related to indebtedness; and (iii) an estimate of the interest within rental expense. There were no preferred stock dividends in the years ended December 31, 2012 through December 31, 2016, or in the three months ended March 31, 2017.
- (2) The ratio for the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013 are based on the historical financial information of Ensign, the predecessor of CareTrust REIT. The ratio for the year ended December 31, 2014 is based, in part, on the historical financial information of Ensign Properties prior to June 1, 2014, the effective date of the Spin-Off. Earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges by \$272,000 and \$8,143,000 for the years ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

Dividends paid on preferred securities issued would be included as fixed charges and therefore impact the ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends. As of the date of this prospectus, we have not issued any shares of our preferred stock.

4

# DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

References to we, us and our in this section refer to CareTrust REIT, Inc.

The following description summarizes the material provisions of the common stock and preferred stock we may offer. This description is not complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our charter and our bylaws and applicable provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Law the (MGCL). The specific terms of any series of preferred stock will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. Any series of preferred stock we issue will be governed by our charter and by the articles supplementary related to that series. We will file the articles supplementary with the SEC and incorporate it by reference as an exhibit to our registration statement at or before the time we issue any preferred stock of that series of authorized preferred stock.

## General

Our authorized stock consists of 500,000,000 shares of common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value \$0.01 per share. As of May 1, 2017, 72,550,973 shares of our common stock were issued and outstanding and no shares of our preferred stock were outstanding. All the outstanding shares of our common stock are fully paid and nonassessable.

### **Common Stock**

All of the shares of our common stock offered hereby will, upon issuance, be duly authorized, fully paid and nonassessable. Subject to the preferential rights of any other class or series of our stock and the provisions of our charter that will restrict transfer and ownership of stock, the holders of shares of our common stock generally are entitled to receive dividends on such stock out of assets legally available for distribution to the stockholders when, as and if authorized by our board of directors and declared by us. The holders of shares of our common stock are also entitled to share ratably in our net assets legally available for distribution to stockholders in the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, after payment of or adequate provision for all known debts and liabilities, including any preferential rights upon liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of any class or series of our stock then outstanding.

Subject to the rights of any other class or series of our stock and the provisions of our charter that restrict transfer and ownership of stock, each outstanding share of our common stock entitles the holder to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders, including the election of directors. Under our charter there is no cumulative voting in the election of directors. Our bylaws require that each director be elected by a plurality of votes cast with respect to such director.

Holders of shares of our common stock generally have no preference, conversion, exchange, sinking fund, redemption or appraisal rights and have no preemptive rights to subscribe for any of our securities. Subject to the provisions of our charter that restrict transfer and ownership of stock, all shares of our common stock have equal dividend, liquidation and other rights.

## **Preferred Stock**

Under our charter, our board of directors may from time to time establish and cause us to issue one or more classes or series of preferred stock and set the terms, preferences, conversion or other rights, voting powers, restrictions, limitations as to dividends or other distributions, qualifications, or terms or conditions of redemption of such classes or series. Accordingly, our board of directors, without stockholder approval, may issue preferred stock with voting,

# Edgar Filing: CareTrust REIT, Inc. - Form 424B5

conversion or other rights that could adversely affect the voting power and other rights of the holders of common stock. Preferred stock could be issued quickly with terms calculated to delay or prevent a change of control or make removal of management more difficult. Additionally, the issuance of preferred stock

5

may have the effect of decreasing the market price of our common stock, may adversely affect the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock, and could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change of control of our company or other corporate action. Preferred stock, upon issuance against full payment of the purchase price therefor, will be fully paid and nonassessable. As of March 31, 2017, no shares of preferred stock were outstanding.

The prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of preferred stock offered will describe the specific terms thereof, including, where applicable:

the title, designation, number of shares and stated value of the preferred stock;

the price at which the preferred stock will be issued;

the dividend rates, if any (or method of calculation), whether that rate is fixed or variable or both, and the dates on which dividends will be payable, whether those dividends will be cumulative or noncumulative and, if cumulative, the dates from which dividends will begin to cumulate;

the dates on which the preferred stock will be subject to redemption and the applicable redemption prices;

any redemption or sinking fund provisions;

the convertibility or exchangeability of the preferred stock;

if other than United States dollars, the currency or currencies (including composite currencies) in which the preferred stock is denominated and/or in which payments will or may be payable;

the method by which amounts in respect of the preferred stock may be calculated and any commodities, currencies or indices, or the value, rate or price relevant to that calculation;

the place where dividends and other payments on the preferred stock are payable and the identity of the transfer agent, registrar and dividend disbursement agent for the preferred stock;

any listing of the preferred stock on any securities exchange; and

any additional dividend, liquidation, redemption, preemption, sinking fund, voting and other rights, preferences, privileges, limitations and restrictions.

# Edgar Filing: CareTrust REIT, Inc. - Form 424B5

The federal income tax consequences and special considerations applicable to any series of preferred stock will be generally described in the prospectus supplement related thereto.

### Rank

Unless otherwise specified in the prospectus supplement relating to a particular series of preferred stock, each series of preferred stock will rank *pari passu* as to dividends and liquidation rights in all respects with each other series of preferred stock.

## **Dividends**

Holders of preferred stock of each series will be entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by our board of directors, cash dividends out of our assets legally available for payment, at those rates and on the dates as will be set forth in the prospectus supplement relating to that series of preferred stock. Each dividend will be payable to holders of record as they appear on our stock books on the record dates fixed by our board of directors or a duly authorized committee thereof. Different series of preferred stock may be entitled to dividends at different rates or based upon different methods of determination. Those rates may be fixed or variable or both. Dividends on any series of preferred stock may be cumulative or noncumulative as provided in the prospectus supplement relating thereto. Except as provided in the related prospectus supplement, no series of preferred stock will be entitled to participate in our earnings or assets.

6

# Liquidation Rights

Unless otherwise stated in the related prospectus supplement, in the event of our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of each series of preferred stock will be entitled to receive out of our assets available for distribution to stockholders, before any distribution of assets is made to holders of common stock or any other class of stock ranking junior to that series of preferred stock upon liquidation, liquidating distributions in an amount set forth in the prospectus supplement related to that series of preferred stock, plus an amount equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends up to the date fixed for distribution for the current dividend period and, if that series of preferred stock is cumulative, for all dividend periods prior thereto, all as set forth in the prospectus supplement with respect to that series of preferred stock. If, upon our voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up, amounts payable with respect to a series of preferred stock and any other shares of our capital stock ranking pari passu as to any distribution with that series of preferred stock are not paid in full, holders of that series of preferred stock and of such other shares will share ratably in any distribution of our assets in proportion to the full respective preferential amounts to which they are entitled. After payment in full of the liquidating distribution to which they are entitled, holders of preferred stock will not be entitled to any further participation in any distribution of our assets.

Neither the sale, conveyance, exchange or transfer of all or substantially all of our property and assets, our consolidation or merger with or into any other corporation, nor the merger or consolidation of any other corporation into or with us, will be deemed to be a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of us.

In determining whether a distribution (other than upon voluntary or involuntary liquidation) by dividend, redemption or other acquisition of shares of our stock or otherwise is permitted under the MGCL, no effect shall be given to amounts that would be needed, if we would be dissolved at the time of the distribution, to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolution of holders of shares of our stock whose preferential rights upon dissolution are superior to those receiving the distribution.

## Redemption and Sinking Fund

The terms, if any, on which shares of a series of preferred stock ma